
TO THE MEMBERS OF AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/S AIS ADHESIVES
LIMITED (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, die Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), die Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "standalone financial
statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the stale of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed hi the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and hi forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The following key
audit matters have been determined by us for including in our report:
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon which we obtained prior to
the dateof this auditor's report, and the Director's report, which is expected to be made available tons
after that date.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

I based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe actions
applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

We have performed the following procedures:

• We have read the contracts with related parties
and unrelated parties, analysed and identified the
performance obligations, and determine the rates
charged for goods supplied.

• We have tested the revenue recognised from
related party, interest on loans and cost of services
availed whether the rates are charged as per the
agreed terms of the contracts and also compared

the rates charged to unrelated parties.

• We have also communicated to those charge with
governance considering the significance of the
matter and the reliability of the rates agreed,
whether the rates charged are at Arm's Length
basis.

• We have also considered the adequacy of financial
report disclosures included in the summary of
significant accounting policies in Note 1 to the
standalone financial statements.

Auditor's Response

Transactions with related parties especially:-

• Revenue from sale of finished goods.

• Availing marketing services.

• Granting of loans out of Surplus Funds
available with the company.

Key Audit Matters
1.

S.No.



Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records hi accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if^ individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

•Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether tire Company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

•Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt onjhe-fiqmpany's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaipf^jSJtists^j^^are required to draw attention in our



1.As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of die Order.

2.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)br our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone fmanciaL^^atements comply with die Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear cm our independence, and where applicable,
Fell



(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statement.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contacts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or

kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belie^ no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 l(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

(e)On the basis of the written representations  received from the  directors  as  on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

(f)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B". Our report expresses an modified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g)With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, no remuneration has
been paid by the Company to its directors during the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:



(ANJU
Partner

Place: New DelhiM No. 511590
Dated: 10* May, 2025UNID:25511590BMORRG8962

ForASHARMA&CO.
Chartered Accountants

FR

(v) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of
recording audit trail. The audit trail feature was enabled and operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further based on test checks, during
our audit, we have not found any instance of the audit trail feature been tampered with.



Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditors' Report)
Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.In respect of the Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
(a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment as well as
intangible assets.

(b)The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment and so to cover all the assets once in a year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c)Since the company does not have any immovable property (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) and therefore, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable.

(d)The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e)No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act,   1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

ii.

(a)Inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory between the books and the physical verification were noticed.

(b)The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ^5 crores, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

in (a) During Ae year, the company has no

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of AIS ADHES1VES LIMITED of even date)

A. Sharma & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



100%

Rs. 910

Rs. 910

Nil

Related Parties

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Promoters

100%

Rs. 910

Rs. 910

Nil

All Parties

Percentage of loans/
advances in nature of loans

to the total loans

Total (A+B)

Aggregate amount of loans/
advance in nature of loans

-Repayable on demand (A)
-Agreement   does   not

specify any terms or period
of repayment (B)

(c) In respect of loans the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not
been stipulated.

(d)Since there is no schedule of repayment in respect of loans granted by the company, the
reporting on overdue amount and steps taken for their recovery are not applicable.

(e)The loans granted by the company have not fallen due during the year. Therefore, the para
3(iiiXe) regarding renewal or extension or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans are not applicable

(t)(Rs. In Lakhs)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Advances  in
die nature of
loans

Rs. 910

Nil

Nil

Loans

Nil

Nil

Nil

Security

Nil

Nil

Nil

Guarantees

Balance outstanding as
at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases

Subsidiaries
Joint Ventures
Associates

-    Others

Subsidiaries
Joint Ventures

Associates
-    Others

Aggregate      amount

CrtltltvUr ^rW fVU ^trXfn
the year

(b) During the year the company has not provided loans, any advances in the nature of loans,
or stood guarantee, or provided security to any entity. Balance outstanding as at the
Balance Sheet date are given below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)



(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not taken any loans or borrowings during the year, hence reporting
for any default in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

filed.
application
Rectification
Officer-
Assessing
pending
the  dispute is
Forum  where

A.Y2021-22

Amount relates
which     the
Period     to

interest)
(including
Rs. 14,62,650/-

Amount (Rs.)

I43(IXa)
outstanding u/s
Demand

Nature of Dues

Income Tax

Statue
Name of the

In respect of loans, provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have been
complied with. The company has not made any investment, given guarantees and
security during the year and therefore the compliance of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act are not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

Provisions for maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, were not applicable to the company.
Hence para 3(vi) of the order was not applicable.

In respect of Statutory dues:
(a)In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise,

Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,

Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable except Rs.3.02 lakhs payable towards tax deducted at
source as reflected in TRACES Portal.

(b)Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as at 31st March 2025 on account of a dispute, are as follows-



xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii. All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Companies Act, 2013; wherever applicable and the Related Party disclosure as
required by IndAS 24 Related Party Disclosures are duly disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

xiv. The provisions relating to Internal Audit under the Act are not applicable to the company,
hence Clause 3(xiv) not applicable to the company.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors, and hence

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(d)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term

purposes by the Company.

(e)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence reporting under
clause 3(ixXe) of the Order are not applicable

(f)The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint ventures or associate company, and
hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xXa)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fitHy or partly or optionally convertible)
and hence reporting under clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.    (a) No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, reporting regarding nature and amount involved is not applicable.

(b)No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rale 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

(c)As represented to us by the management there were no whistfe blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting regarding application of
loan for the purpose for which obtained and any diversion of loan amount under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable.
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(a)In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a),
(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,
reporting regarding consideration of issues, objections and concerns raised by the
outgoing auditors are not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the

date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the

future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of (me year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a)There was no amount unspent which was required to be transferred to a fund specified
in Schedule 7 to the Companies Act, 2013 within a period of 6 months of the expiry of
Financial Year in compliance with section 135(5) of the said act.

(b)There was no amount remained unspent on any ongoing project which was required to
be transferred to special account in compliance with section 135(6) of the said act.
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The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auflnor s i^^sdobsiom^y

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtafimf^ii sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company'stntemal fittffityial controls system over financial
reporting.if^^

ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AIS ADHESIVES
LIMITED (the "Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
Financial Statements

A, Sharma & Co,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over finmicial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to fixture periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedxxres may deteriorate.
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Mr. Vikram Khanna
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant & equipment
Intangible assets other than Goodwill
Right to Use

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets

Investment
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalent
Loans
Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Leased Laibilities

Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Leased Laibilities
Trade payables
(a)Total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note
19)

(b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Significant Accounting Policies

For A on behalf of Board of Directors

As atAs at
31st March 2

(Rs. Lakhs)

AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH' 2025



n the Ind AS 7 on "Statem

1,909.29

10.30

41.63

1,857.37

Notes:
I)  The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' as set o
Cash Flows"

ii) Figures in brackets represent outflows.
iii) Previous Tear figures have been restated wherever necessary.

For * on behalf of Board of Dirartora

59.79

2,27619

Cash in hand
Balances with banks:

- on deposit accounts (with original maturity of 12 months
or less)

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

(1.96)
(15.06)

(2.76)

(150.65)

1,029.18
142.65

(561.78)
102.87

2.14
7.08

81.94
0.75

30.19
14.05

101.04
(0.41)

24.74

2.06
O.Oj

976.51
(216.41)

16.98
(134)

Year ended
31st March 2024

0.29
(13.05)

(0.24)

(245.60)

963.57
(262.40)

17.16
(1.50)
(0.29)
13.05

245.60

1,231.36
(12.89)
213.38

(481.01)
(29.96)
(1.27)

281.15
5.15

(9.43)
(28.06)

(200.49)
1.26

(9.46)

Year ended
31st Mar 2025

A.Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation on Right to Use Assets
Net actuarial gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans
Finance costs
Borrowing cost Right to use
Interest income
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ decrease in current loans
(Increase)/ decrease in other non current financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in other Current financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in deferred tax assets (net)
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ decrease In Investment
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets
(Increase)/ decrease in current tax assets (net)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables
increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities for lease
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in non current financial liabilities for lease
Increase/ (decrease) In non-current provisions
Increase/ (decrease) in current provisions
Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income taxes (paid)
Net cash provided/ (used) by operating activities (A)

B.Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received during the year
Net cash used by investing activities (B)

C.Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid
Borrowing cost Right to use
Initial adjustment in Reserve against lease obligations
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Issue of Share Capital
Dividend & Dividend Tax paid
Net cash generated from financing activities (C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AS AT 31st March 2025



AS PER OUR SEPARATE REPORT OF EVEN DATE ANNEXED

Lokesh Sethi
Head - F&A

DATED i 10TH MAY'2025
t: HS\0

Mr VikakSaxena
COO

Mr. Subodh Kumar Singh
Manager - F & A

28.2931.26

Mr. Vilf am Khanna
Director
DIN 03634131

Mr. Gtipll Ganatra
Directb?
DIN 05233949

619.93

(1.00)

(1.34)
(0.34)

620.93

216.75

214.43
(5.10)
(7.42)

837.68

837.68

2,695.09
(42.72)
73.73
17.02
25.16

162.84
2,931.12

3,618.15
150.65

3,768.80

684.97

(1.12)

(1.50)
(0.38)

686.09

262.78

245.57
18.10
(0.89;

948.87

948.87

2,775.30
60.75
82.05
12.76
25.64

173.51
3,130.01

3,833.27
245.60

4,078.87

22
23
24
25
26
27

20
21

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit before tax
Tax expense

Current Tax
Provision for Earlier Years
Deferred tax Assets/(Liability)

Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net of tax)

- Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
-Deferred Tax on OCI

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income
tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share (Par value Rs 10/- each)
Basic & Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended  For the year ended
31st March 2025   31st March 2024

Particulars

(Rs. Lakhs)

AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
" STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH1 2025



1.3  Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet  based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
•expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating

cycle;
•held primarily for the purpose of trading;
•expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
•cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

1.1Corporate information :

AIS Adhesives Limited ("AIA" or "the Company") is a public limited company domiciled
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act. The
registered office of the Company is located at A-2/10, 1st Floor, WHS DDA Marble
Market, Kirti Nagar, Mansarover Garden. New Delhi -110015. The Company is
primarily engaged in the repackaging and marketing of adhesives all over India.

1.2Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

The company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read together with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
('Previous GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 are
the financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IND AS
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees ("INR").

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025
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AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025

•expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
•held primarily for the purpose of trading;
•due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
•there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All
assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

•(a) Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

•(b) Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

•(c) Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
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AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted
financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. External valuers are involved,
wherever considered necessary.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. This note
summarizes accounting policy for fair value and the other fair value related disclosures
are given in the relevant notes.

(c)Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until the assets
are ready for use and include inward freight, duties, taxes and expenses incidental to
acquisition and installation. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible
asset are added to its book value only if the recognition criteria is satisfied.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized
shall be derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) shall be included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on tangible assets is charged on straight line method (SLM)

For the purpose of depreciation calculation, residual value is determined as 5% of the
original cost for all the assets, as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment shall be reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

(d)Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
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(e)   Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's
("CGU") fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life shall be reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite shall be made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed
off.

5 years
5 years
5 years
Useful Life

Design & Drawings
Franchise Fee
Trade Mark & Software
Assets

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent
with the function of the intangible assets. The useful lives are as follows:



(f) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the balance

sheet) when:

•The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
•The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit
risk exposure. The Company follows .^jttmBlified approach' for recognition of

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31s' March, 2025
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impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on twelve-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The twelve-month ECL is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within twelve
months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period
is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is
reflected under the head ^other expenses' in the profit or loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables, and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defin^drTb^Jnd AS 109. Separated embedded
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derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings is the category most relevant to the Company, After initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a re-classification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification
prospectively from the re-classification date, which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses)
or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

T//^   .\O\



(i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(h)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Raw Material : cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition and valued at moving weighted
average cost basis. The raw material is valued at Moving Weighted Average basis.

Packing materials, Stores and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Finished goods and Work-in-progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating
capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Stock-in-trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

(g)   Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in
bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025



(k) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement.

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. A lease is classified at the
inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
to the company is classified as Finance Lease. Finance leases are capitalized at the

commencement of the lease at the date of transaction at fair value of the leased
property. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability on IRR method. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss unless they are directly attributable to the qualifying
assets in which case they are capitalized in accordance with accounting policy on
borrowing cost. A leased asset is depreciated over its useful life

Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
substantially vest with lessor, are recognized as operating lease. Lease payments
under operating lease are recognized as expense in statement of profit and loss.

(j) Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 " Leases" to lease contracts existing on 1st April
2019 other than short term leases using the modified retrospective method. In
accordance with Ind AS-116, for all leases with a term of more than twelve months,
the Company recognizes a "right of use" assets at cost representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
future lease payments. The right of use assets are depreciated using the straight line

method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of
right to use asset, in accordance with Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets" Interest expense
is accounted for on the outstanding lease liability using the incremental borrowing
rate.

The lease payments associated with short term leases of twelve months or less are
recognized as an expense on straight line basis over the lease term.

AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31s1 March, 2025
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Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale
of products is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Interest-

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the statement of profit
and loss.

(I)   Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts

The company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers",
which was notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015
(as Amended) and made applicable from 01.04.2018. The revenue has been
recognized in accordance with the following five step model:

i.Identify contract with customer
ii.Identify performance obligation in contract

iii.Determine transaction price
iv.Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
v.Recognize revenue when the company satisfies performance obligation

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent Liability
A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow or resources will be
required to settle the obligation. The company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of the
outflow is remote.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.



Gratuity

Retirement benefit in the form of superannuation fund is a defined Group Gratuity
contribution scheme with PNB MetLife India Insurance Co. Ltd. The Company has
established a Superannuation Fund Trust to which contributions are made monthly.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the superannuation fund scheme as
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The liabilities with
respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the company contributes to the
Group Gratuity Scheme.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnLos^through OCI in the period in which
they occur.

(m)  Employee benefits

Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected
to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related services are recognized in respected of employee
service up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other Long term employee benefit obligations

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution
payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.

The contributions to provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss on
an accrual basis.

AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025



(o)Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in OCI or iiveera+ty in correlation to the underlying

Accumulated Leaves

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is
treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats
accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method at the year-end.

(n) Foreign Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The company's financial
statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the company.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recognized in the functional currency, using
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in the foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured in
fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change
in fair value of the item.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward exchange contract is
amortized and recognized as an expense/income over the life of the contract. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is
also recognized as income or expense for the period.

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025



Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying
transaction).

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiary and associate, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for
all taxable temporary differences, except:

• when the deferred tax liability or asset arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025

transaction). Management periodically evaluates positions taken.in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.



(s) Use of judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions management has made which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are
explained in relevant notes in the financial statements.

(r)Exceptional items

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately
disclosed to enable a full understanding of the company's financial performance.

(q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

(p)Cash dividend to equity holders

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in
equity.

AISADHESIVES LIMITED
Note No. 1: Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2025



115.29

115.27
115.27

0.02

99.71

99.68
99.68

0.02

74.02

49.47
49.47

24.55

0.00

0.00

0.00

16.98

16.98
16.98

0.00

57.04

32.49
32.49

24.55

173.73

149.16
149.16

24.57

0.00

0.00

0.00

1.40

1.40
1.40

0.00

172.33

147.76
147.76

24.57

0.02
0.00

0.00
0.02

0.06
0.18

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

24.31
0.000.00

24.31
0.20
0.06

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

24.31
0.20
0.06

As at               As at
31 March 2024    31 March 2023

Net carrying value
(Rs. Lakhs)

Deductions/            Upto
adjustments      31 March 2024

nortisation and impairment
For

the year

Depreciation/an
Upto

1 April 2023
As at

31 March 2024
Deductions/
adjustments

s carrying value

Additions

Gros:
As at

1 April 2023

Particulars

Right to Use
Total

0.00
0.02
0.000.00

0.00
0.00

24.31
0.20
0.06

000
0-00
0.00

0.00
0.02
0.000.06

0.20
24.31

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.06
0.20

24.31

Computer Software
Drawing
License and Franchisee
Total

As at
ralue

(Rs. Lakhs)
carrying v

As at
Net

Upto
lent

Deductions/
adjustments

i/amortisation and impainn
For

the year

De p reciati o ^
Upto

1 April 2024
As at

31 Mar 2025
Deductions/
adjustments

carrying value

Additions

Gross i
As at

1 April 2024

Particulars
As at 31 st March 2025

2b  Intangible assets other than Goodwill

34.87128.212.05
0.23
2.10
9.92
76.29

1.75
2.04
2.20
9.32
69.86

1.40
0.73

14.93
2.72

23.270.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

5.93
1.10
0.54
0.31
0.30

17.34
1.63

14.38
0.42
1.10

93.13
12.05
17.13
2.77
3.14

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.64
2.12
0.00

125.45

93.63
11.55
16.49
0.65
3.14

Plant & Equipment's
Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipment's
Computers
Electrical Fittings
Total

As at               As at
31 March 2024     31 March 2023

Net carrying value
(Rs. Lakhs)

Upto
31 March 2024

npairment
Deductions/
adjustments

For
the year

Depreciation/amortisation and ir
Upto

1 April 2023
As at

31 March 2024
Deductions/

Additions     adjustments

Gross carrying value
As at

1 April 2023

Particulars
As at 31 March 2024

85.16

70.36
8.82
2.20
2.04
1.75

76.94

63.43
8.73
1.98
1.36
1.45

51.510.0043.05128.45

29.20
3.82

15.39
1.40
1.69

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

5.93
1.10
0.46
0.67
0.30

23.27
2.72

14.93
0.73
1.40

92.63
12.55
17.37
2.77
3.14

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.24
0.00
0.00

128.21

93.13
12.05
17.13
2.77
3.14

Plant & Equipment's
Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipment's
Computers
Electrical Fittings
Total

As at
value

(Rs. Lakhs)

As at
Net carrying

Upto
rment

Deductions/
adjustments

For
the year

Depreciation/amortisation and tmpai

1 April 2024
As at

31 Mar 2025
Deductions/
adjustments

>s carrying value

Additions

Gros
As at

1 April 2024

Particulars
As at 31 st March 2025

2a  Property, plant & equipment



Under Par Sports Technologies Pvt. Limited
- 90000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Less:- Provision for Investment
Total

As at 31 Mar 2025 (Rs. Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2024

327.40
123.78

32.92

Raw materials
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Scrap

Total
fa)   Raw Materials are valued at moving weighted average cost basis.
(b)Work m progress and Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever Is lower.
(c)Scrap items are valued at net realisation value

(Bis. Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2024As at 31 Mar 2025

Particulars

Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation/ carried forward losses under tax laws
Expenses allowed for tax purpose on payment basis

Recognised In OCI

Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation/ carried forward losses under ti
Expenses allowed for tax purpose on payment basis
Total

Recognised In OCI

e governing laws.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax Assets
Total

fa)   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities nave been offset as they relate to the s

Aa at 31 March 2024As at 31 Mar 2025

Deferred tax assets (net)

Bank deposits with more than 12 months m
Unsecured considered pood:
Security deposits

At at 31 Mar 3025

ts - Non-currant



33.39
24 77
69.26

0.02

is and Advances which have significant Increase in Credit Risk
-Balance with Bank
-Other Advance Under Par Sports Technologies Pvt. Limited

AdvarAs at 31 Mar 2025as at 31 March 2024

Income tax (net of provision)

Total

12  Other current assets

13.98

10.45

(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest Receivable;

on Fixed Deposit with Bank
On Inter Corporate deposits

Accrued Interest
Total

11   Current tax Assets (Net)

AS at 31 Mar 2025

350.00
60.00

500.00

1-123.78

0.03
910.00

213.50

350.00
60.00

500.00

?19i1(}

0.03
910.00

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
• To related parties
- To others
Assests held for sale
National Saving Certificate
Unsecured Loans-

Deposit with NBFC :-
Fixed Deposits with Balat Finance Limited

Total

-Unsecured Loans to related parties repayable on demand
1.AIS Glass Solution Limited
2.GX Glass Sales and Services Limited
3.Shield Autoglass Urnited.

10  Other current financial assets

As at 31 Mar 2025AS at 31 March 2024

current accounts.amount of Rs. 5.04,Lakhs (Previous fear Rs. 3.76 Lakhs) is In

Loans - Current

haturity upto twelve months

8   Cash and cash equivalents

More thin 3 yeai.2-3 year.1-2 year.

More thin 3 year.1-2 year*
Ino for followlno periods from due date of Davment

^o.^i
Lee* thin  month.

340.0^
Not Due

28.25400. ?4
Not Due

Outxtant

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have sinnificant increase in credir risk
Disputed Trade Receivables- considered anod

As At 31st March, 2024

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables- considered oood

As At 31st Mar, 2025

AS st 31 March 2024

Balances with banks

e receivable includes from following related parties
1.A1S Distribution Services Limited
2.Shield Auto glass Limited
3.AIS Glass Solutions Limited

Trade receivables

Less: Allowance for bad & doubtful receivables

Trade receivables



3.628.45

(3.81)

(2.81)
(134)
(0.34)

3.569.04

3.569.04

2,948.12
620.93

1i^l^i1

(4.93)

(3.81)
(150)
(0.38)

4.255.14

4.255.14

3,569.04
686 09

Items of other comprehensive Income recognised directly In retained earnings:
-Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans, net of tax
Closing balance

other comprehensive Income

-Net actuarial aains/(losses^ on defined benefit plans, net of tax

•ment of profit & loss
th respect to method of de
soect to method of valuatio

Opening balance

Retained earnings
Opening balance
Add / (Less): Net Profit / (Loss! after Tax transferred from
Add : Chanae in amount of depreciation due to change in accounti^
Less : Change in value of inventor^ due to change in accounting pol

63.22
2.948.12

620.93
(3.81)

63.22
3,569.04

686.09

General reserve
Retained earnings
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Inc

(Rs. Lakhs]
L March 2024

14  Other equity

96.66%7099790
No. of shares

As at 31.03.2024

95.66%
%aoe holdlna

2099790
No. or shares

As at 31.03.2025

ASAHI INDIA GLASS LTD.
Name of Shareholders

(dl Details of Shareholding of promotor share holders :

95 66%
lOldino

03.2024

2099790
No. of shares

As at 3:

95 66%
dlna%aoe ho

2099790
No. of shares

As at 31.03.2025

INDIA GLASS LTD.
fSh

ASAH

(el  Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares In the company

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of issued equity shares having a par value Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no
such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders.

219.51

219.51
Amount in Rs.

Lakhs

21.95.090

21.95.090
No. of Shares

As at 31.03.2024

219.51

219.51

Amount In Rs.
lakhs

21,95,090

21.95.090
No. of Shares

As at 31.03.2025

At the end of the period

At the Beginning of the year

Fully Paid Equity Shares

As at 31 Mar 2025As at 31 March 2

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the yi

. Authorised
25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 aach

13  Equity share capital



*l comprehensive income (a+b)
juslmeni durinE the year
Ind AS ll6adi Ljstmeras
ance as at 31 March 2024

statements of

Money
received

against share

Effective

Cash Flow
Hedges

CapitalAmalgamation
ShareEquity

applicationcomponent of
moneycompound

pendingfinancial

npiehensive income (a+b)
AS 116 adjustments

bid AS lieadiustmenis
ance as at 31 March 2025

3,628.45
q-12)

ance as at 1 April 2024
fit(or the vear(a)
er comprehensive income [bl

operation
a foreign

ion   translatin^
Surplus

Revsluati

Hedges

portion of
Effective

ve Income
Comprehensi

through
Instruments

Comprehensiv
through Other

earnings
Retained

Equity

compound

Reserves  surplus

.219.5,

Changes in
equity share

' the current   capital during
reporting  the current year

Balance at theChanges in    ™
beginning ofEquity Sharethe currentCapital due  _j\"

reportingto prior

Itv share capital
Other equity (Refer Note-141
the Year ended 31 March 2025

219.51itv share capital

balance atChanges in
the beginningequity share
of the currentcapital during

reportingthe current year

Balance at theChanges in
beginning ofEquity Share
the currentCapital due
reportingto prior

periodperiod errors

•e capital (Refer Note. 1*



245.24
0.36

•or the year
ended

t March 2024

MAJOR ITEMS OF SALES
Beta seal (FG)
Autoseal

21   other Income

0.22
0.64

.0.16

20  Revenue from operations

Provision for employee's benefits:
-Leave encashment
-Gratuity

31 March 2024

19  Provisions- Current

Statutory Pavablet
Payable Towards TDS & TCS Under Income Tax
Others - Income Tax Payable
Payable Towards Provident Fund. ESIC & LWF"
Other payables
Expenses payable
Labilities towards TDS related demands
Liabilities towards GST
Total
"Including Rs.0.11 Lakhs towards LWF not paid due to non-registration ( Previous Year Rs. 0.11 Lakhs)

31 March 2024
Particulars

Employee's Benefits Expenses Pavables

Total

18  Other current liabilities

As at 31 Mar 2025As at 31 March 2024

17  Other current financial liabilities

397.32
6.43

TotalMore than 3 yeara2-3 year1-2 yean

.V^.^?
6.43

Let*than 1 year
Out* tend ing for followlna period* from due dat* of payment

193.22
10.03

TotalMore than 3 year*2-3 ¥,1-2 year*

1<9^.?^
10-p^

Lmi than 1 yen
Out^tanding lor followin^ period^ from du* date of paymtnl

flvlDisouted dues - Others

fil MSME

As At 31St Mar, 2024

fiv^Disouted dues - Others
(Nil Disputed dues - MSME

As At 31st Mar, 2025

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
Dues to other than micro, small and medium enterprises
Total
Trade payable Includes to following related parties

1. AIS Glass Solution Limited

Trade Pavables Aoeino Schedule

AS at 31 March 1024As at 31 Mar 2025

= Provision for employee benefit expen
Leave Encashment
Gratuity

Total

IS  Trade payables - Current

(Rs. Lakhs)
It 31 March 2024As at 31 Mar 2025

15  Provisions - Non-current

Particulars



0.40
0.00
0.25

12.50
15.40
0.06

0.28

0.60
14.00
13.05
0.06

as & Marketing
Selling & Forwarding Expenses
Travelling a Conveyance
Repairs & Maintenance- Plant a Machinery
Miscellaneous Expenses
Printing & Stationary
Bad Debts & Advances Written Off
Provision for Investment and Related Debt

Office Maintenance
Contribution Towards CSR
Prior-Period Expenses
Rebate a Discount
Refections

•Payable to related parties Rs. 35.10 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 33.00 Lakhs)

cationTelephone 6 Cor

-for taxation matters
-for reimbursement of expenses

Legal a Professioi

5.79
6.03
0.63

5 66
5.22
0.76

Electricity Expenses31st March 2024

For the year
ended

31st March 2025

tired at amortised cost

27  Other expenses

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment's
Amortisation on Intangible Assets
Amortisation on Right to Use assets

Finance charoes on financial liabilities ma
Foreign Exchanoe Fluctuation (net)
Interest on Delay oavment to MSME Creditors
Borrowing cost Right to use
Bank Charges

For the year
ended

3lst March 2024

For the year
ended

31st March 2025

74.54
0.76
2.39

Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus
Leave Encashment
Gratuity
Contribution to provident and other fund!
Staff welfare expenses

25   Finance coat

For the veer
ended

3lst March 3034

31st March 2024

For the Vr
ended

31st March 2024

For the year
ended

31st March 2025

Employee benefits expense^

Inventory at the beoinnlnn of the veer
Finished goods
Work-in-progreSS
Stock-in-trade
Inventory at the close of the veer

23  Changes In Inventories of finished goods, Stock-ln-Trade

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening ^tock
Add^ Purchase*



Total Rental expense recognise Rs. 5,22 Lacs

Figures in brackets indicates credit balances in the books of accounts17.1
13.0

5.2
66.6
97.1

148.25

Recognised as on
31.03.2025

17.16
13.05

5.22
17.16

(16.80)

(0.91)

Provided During
year ended
31.03.2025

49.47
113.98

149.16

Recognised as
on 01.04.2024

DEPRECIATION ON RIGHTS TO USE
BORROWING COST RECOGNISED
OTHER INCOME
RENT PAID
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ON RIGHT TO USE
(CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT)
LIABILITY FOR LEASED ASSETS
RIGHT TO USE

Particulars

2  Ind AS 116

AS 116 * Leases* applied to lease contracts existing on 1st April 2025 other than short-term teases using the modified retrospective method and has taken
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, net of taxes of Rs.5,45,351/- on the date of initial application.

During the year Standard resulted In recognition of following assets/liabilities.

< i.oo^

Tax expense/
(benefit)

Tax expense/
(benefit)

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2025

216.75

209.33

7.42

(5.10)

262.78

263.67

(0.89)

18.10

For the year
ended

31st March 2024

For the year
ended

31st March 2025
Current tax expense

Current vear
Adjustment for earlier years

Deferred tax expense
Ori^ination and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in tax rate

Total

ii) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Disclosure as par Ind AS 12 'Income taxes'



Total Rental expense recognise Rs. 5.22 Lacs

s in brackets indicates credit balances in the books of accounts

148.25

97.18
66.64

5.22

13.05
17.16

Recognised as on
31.03.2025

(0.91)

(16.80)
17.16
5.22

13.05
17.16

Provided During
year ended
31.03.2025

149.16

113.98
49.47

Recognised as
on 01.04.2024

RIGHT TO USE
LIABILITY FOR LEASED ASSETS
(CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT)
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ON RIGHT TO USE
RENT PAID
OTHER INCOME
BORROWING COST RECOGNISED
DEPRECIATION ON RIGHTS TO USE

Particulars

2  Ind AS 116 'Leasea'

AS 116 * Leases" applied to lease contracts existing on 1st April 2025 other than short-term leases using the modified retrospective method and has taken
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, net of taxes of Rs.5,45,351/- on the date of initial application.

During the year Standard resulted in recognition of following assets/liabilities.

Tax expense/
(benefit)

For the year ended
31st March 2024

Tax expense/
(benefit)

For the yesr ended
31st March 2025

216.73

209.33

7.42

214.43
(5.10)

262.78

263.67

(0.89)

18.10

For the year
ended'

31st March 2024

For the year
ended

31st March 2025

ii) Income tax recognised In other comprehensive income

Current tax expense
Current year
Adtustment ^^r earlier years

Deferred tax expense
Orlaination and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in tax rate

1   Disclosure u par Ind AS 12 'income taxea'

(a)  Income tax expense
i) Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss



V
The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in the employment market. Further, the expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of
plan assets held, assessed risk of asset management and historical returns from plan assets.

7.25% Per Annum

5% Per Annum
8% Per Annum

31 March 2024

14.16

1.04

I 06

6.75% Per Annum

5% Per Annum
7.78% Per Annum

31 March 2025

16.62

1.18

Discount rate

Withdrawal Rste
Salary escalation rate

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost (income)
Total amount recognised in profit or loas
Included in OCI:
Remeasuremenl loss (gain):

Other
Benefits paid
Closing balance

Defined benefit obligations
a. Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

Defined benefit obligation
31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Particulars

Movement In net defined benefit (assetyiiability

15.78
0.84

16 62
16 62

31 March 2024

15.75
3.79

19.54
19.54

31 March 2025

Non-current
Current

Net defined benefit (assetyiiability:
Gratuity

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at
balance sheet date:

3  Disdo.urea. period AS 19'Employee benefit.1

(a)Denned contribution plans:
The Company pays fixed contribution to below funds at predetermined rates to appropriate authorities:
I. Provident fund
An amount of Rs.2.95 Lakhsf Previous Year Rs. 2,70,Lakhs) for the year aiding on 31 March 2025 is recognised as an expense on this account and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

ii. Employee state insurance and labour fund
An amount of Rs.0.06 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.0.1 i Lakhs) for the year ending on 31 March 2025 is recognised as an expense on this account and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(b)Defined benefit plans:

a) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitled to gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 X last drawn
basic salary plus dearaess allowance) for each completed year of service. The Company has carried out actuarial valuation of gratuity benefit.



0.22
4.14

4.36

31 March 2024
IRs. Lakhsl

1.05
4.25

5.29

31 Mlrch 2025

Non-current
Current

Net defined benefit (tssetyiiability:
Leave Encashment

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the leave encashment plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

ii. Leave encashment

The company has amended its plan for leave encashment which is now treated as a retirement benefit plan and has been worked out by an independent actuary.

16.62

16.62

19.54

19.54

12.83

12.83

II II

11.11

0J7

0.37

1.32

1.32

1.66

1.66

0.35

0.35

0.45

0.45

035

0.35

0.45

0.45

2.65

2.65

3.79

3.79

084

0.84

(Rs. Lakhs)
2028-29    2029-30  01.04.2030   Total2025-26    2026-27

Eitimate of expected benefit payment In future yean

31 March 2025

Gratuity

Total

31 March 2024
Gratuity

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
a)Changes in discount rate
A decrease in discount rate will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

b)Life expectancy
The pension plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans' tiabilitie
This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

b. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the repotting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 202.131 March 2024
Increase     DecreaseIncreaseDecrease

Discount rate (1.00% movement)18.32209315.5217.86
Withdrawal Rate (1.00% movement)19.4619.6416.5616.68
Salary escalation rate (1.00% movement)20.9118.3217.8415.52

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of
the assumptions shown.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.



ult in an increase in the plans' liabilities.

b) Life expectancy
The pension plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will n
This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
a) Changes in discount rate
A decrease in discount rate will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

Discount rate (1.00% movement)
Withdrawal Rate (1.00% movement)
Salary escalation rate (1.00% movement)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of
the assumptions shown.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be con-elated.

4.04
4 38
4 74

473
435
404

491
5.33
5 74

5.73
5.27
4.91

e of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
31 March 2025             31 March 2024

Increase     DecreaseIncreaseDecrease

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to o

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply

b. Sensitivity analysis

7.25% Per Annum

5% Per Annum

8% Per Annum

31 March 2024
6.75% Per Annum

5% Per Annum

7.78% Per Annum

31 March 2025
Discount rate

Withdrawal Rate

Salary escalation rate

Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid
Closing balance

Defined benefit obligations
a. Actuarial assumptions

The following were die principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

0.23

077

042
035

0.65

0.76

0.44
0.32

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Interest cost (income)
Total amount recognised in profit or lou
Included in OCI:
Remeasurement loss (gain):
Total amount recognised in other comprehe

Defined benefit obligation
31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Particular*

Movement in net defined benefit (auetytiability



Jf- A-

3S0.00
500.00

4.Loans/Advances Given
AIS Glass Solutions Limited
Shield Auto Glass Ltd.

5.Loan received back
AIS Glass Solutions Limited

AIS Distribution Services Limited

173 13
14.93

-Material Sold
AIS Distribution Services Limited
Shield Autoglass Ltd.
AIS Glass Solutions Limited

-Interest Received
AIS Glass Solutions Limited
GX Glass Sales & Services Limited
Shield Autoglass Ltd.

-Purchase of Glass and Other Prednets (Raw Materials)
Asahi India Glass Limited

AIS Glass Solutions Limited
AIS Distribution Services Limited

-Franchisee fee
Shield Autoglaas Ltd.

-Rent
Asahi India Glass Limited

2013-241014-15

Enterprises owned or
signincanlly influenced

byKeyMsnaeement
Personnel

(Rs. Lakhs)

(b) Transactions with ^ee related parife* an ufeJIo-i:

Director
Director
Director (changed in designation w e f 29 09 2024)

(KMPRf U) Key Mi
Mr. Gopal Gan.trt
Mr. Vikram Khanns
Mr Rupinder Shelly

4 Dttdosm* M per Ind AS 24 'Related Party Diictaenree'
"(a)  Lot of Related partita:

i)Holdingb Company:
I. Asahi India Glass Limited

ii) Enterprises owned or significantly influancod by KMPi or feeir relalti
1.AIS Glass Solutions Limited
2.Shield Autoglass Ltd.

3.AIS Distribution Services Limited
4.GX Glass Sales & Services Limited
5.Under Par Sports Technologies Pvt Limited



(ii) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of available information and legal opinion obtained by the Company and accepted by the Auditors as c

500.00
60 00

500 00

350.00
60 00

500 00

Amount recoverable other than loans (Ai Debtors)
Shield Auto Glass Ud.
AIS Distribution Services Limited
AIS Glass Solutions Limited

Amount receivable towards loans and advances
AIS Glass Solutions Limited
GX Glass Sales & Services Limited
Shield Auto Glass Ltd.

Amount payable.
Asehi India Glasa Limited (towards purchase)
AIS Glass Solutions Limited
Asahi India Glass Limited (rent payable)

Investment in related enterprise
Under Par Sports Technologies Pvt. Limited

Short term Loans and advances
Under Par Sports Technologies Pvt Limited

(c)  Outstanding balances with related parties are as follows:



Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for

31 March 2025 31 March 2024Particulars

Rs. 2. Lakhs(Previous Year Rs. 2.00 Lakhs) has been deposited against the above Bank guarantees

Commitments

26-03-2016

26-03-2016

11-06-2012

11-06-2012

MATURITY DATE

0.50

0.50

O.SO

0.50

AMOUNT OF
GUARANTEE RS

27-03-2011

27-03-2011

06-12-2007

06-12-2007

ISSUE DATE

EXCISE,
TAXATION

TAXATION
OFFICER CUM

D6SIGNATED
OFFICER OF
PUNJAB VAT*

NOIIFIED
AUTHORITY OF

BENEFICIARY

003GT02083000720

003GT02083000719

003GTO1083000487

003GT01083000486

REFERENCE

(a)Contingent liabilities

Income TaxfDemand including Interest of Rs.2.02 Lakhs)*14.6313.28
^Contingent Liabilities related to AY 2021-22 raised u/s 143{1A) has been contested by the companies before CPC and an
application for ratification of mistake is also filed with jundictional assessing officer.

(b)Guarantees
i) Bank Guarantees in sales tax department2.002.00

Bank Guarantees of fts. 2 Lacs taken from HDFC Bank Limited

6  Disclosure as per Znd AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'
Contingent liabilities and commitments

(Rs. Lakhs)
^, .̂ ,.,•^ ,31 March 2025 31 March 2024

21.95

21.95

31 March 2024

620.93

(Rs. Lakhs)

31 March 2024
(Rs. Lakhs)

21.95

21.95

31 March 2025

686.09

31 March 2025

Opening balance of issued equity shares
Effect of shares issued during the year, if any
Weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding at the end of the year for calculation of
Basic and Diluted EPS

(a)Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

(b)Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator)

31,25,569.4128,28,714.24
10.0010.00

31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Basic and diluted earnings per share
Nominal value per share

5  Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per Share1

Basic and diluted earnings per share



th

Fixed-rate borrowings
Bank overdraft
Rupee term loans
Foreian currency loans

Floating-rate borrowings
Bank overdraft
Rupee term loans
Foreign currency loans

31 March 2025Particulars

fb) Liauidltv risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet Its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity rlk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
to ensure funds are available for use as per the requirements.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

(I) Financina arranaements
The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

109.31
415.60

1.909.29

Non-current loans
Other non-current financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 202431 March 2025

7  Financial Risk Manaoement

The Company's activities expose It to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company,
derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency/commodity swaps are entered into by the Company to hedge
certain foreign currency and commodity exposure. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The Company Is exposed to the following risks from Its use of financial Instruments:
-Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
-Market risk

fa)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty may not be able to settle their obligations. To manage trade receivable, the Company periodically assesses
the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial conditions, economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of such receivables.

fi) Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:



Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31st March 2025 as required by
Micro. Small and Medium Enterorises DevelODment Act. 2006

(Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars31 March 2025  31 March 2024

a)Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
Principal amount10.036.24
Interest due thereon0.040.18

b)Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED Act along-with the amount paid to the suppliers
beyond the appointed day.

c)Amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
d)Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

e)Amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprises, for the purpose of  disallowances as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act  ;-



9  Segment ReDortlng

The corriDanv is a sinale seament company and therefore, there is nothina to report under Seament Reoortina.

10Details of foreign exchange transactions:

a)Value of imports calculated on CIF basis:
i). Raw Material: Rs. 405.57 Lakhs- (Previous year Rs. fts. 3.69 Lakhs)
iD.Caoital qoods: Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil/-)

b)Earnings in foreign exchange on FOB basis:
I). Export of goods/servicesNil (Previous year Nil)
il). other IncomeNil (Previous vear Nii)

11Amounts In the financial statement are presented in Lakhs (up to two decimal) except for per share data & otherwise stated. Certain amounts which do
not appear due to rounding of are disclosed separately. Figures relating to the previous year has been regrouped/redassified wherever considered
necessary to make them comparable with the current year period



xix The company has not traded or Invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year.

Enterprises
development and

adult literacy.

0.00

-0.40

12.50

12.10

Enterprises
development,

Digital and adult
literacy,

Sanitation and
Hygiene

0.00

-0.02

14.00

13.98(a)Amount required to be spent by the Company during
the year
(b)Amount of Expenditure Incurred

(c)Shortfall at the end of year

(d)Total of previous years shortfall

(e)Reason for shortfall

(0 Nature of CSR activities

31 March 202431 March 3025particulars

^ftt̂ ^ %2i ^d^ition^l R^g^latorv Information

i   The company does not have any immovable property and therefore information on title deeds held In the name of the company Is not required

ii  Since the company does not have any Immovable property Information of fair value of Investment Property Is not required

ill  The Company has not revalued Its Property/Plant/Equipment Including Right to use Assets during the year,

iv  The company has not revalued its Intangible Assets during the year

v During the year no Loans or Advances In the nature of loans are granted to the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act 2013), that are repayable on
demand or without specifying and terms or period of repayment. Previous year granted to AIS Glass Solution Limited Rs 350 Lakhs, GX Glass Sales and Services
Limited Rs 60 Lakhs and Shield Autoglass Limited of Rs 500 Lakhs

vl There is no capital work In progress as on the reporting date

vll The company has no Intangible Asset under development as on the reporting date.

vlil The Company does not hold any benaml property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder.

IxThe company has no borrowings from any banks or financial Institutions, therefore the reporting under this clause is not applicable.

xThe Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any Bank/Financial Institution/other lender.

xlThe Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013/ Section 560 of Companies Act 1956..

xllThere are no charges/ satisfaction yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

xlll The Company does not have any layers of companies as prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act, read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017.

xlv A composite scheme of arrangement under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 between the Company (transferor) and M/S
AIS Glass Solutions Limited (transferee) has been approved by the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 29th February 2024. The application was
filed with the NCLT on 26-03-2024. As per the scheme the "Appointed Date" effecting the merger will be the commencement of business hours of April l, 2023 or such
other date as the NCLT may direct. The NCLT vide Its order delivered on 01.05.2025 mentioned "Reserved for orders". As such no effect of merger has been accounted
for in these financial statements prepared for year ended 31.03.2025.

xv a) The Company has not advanced/loaned/invested funds(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or
entity(ies) including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall
I.Directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entitles identified in any other matter whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
II.Provide any guarantee or security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les). Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded In
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall
L Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any matter whatsoever by or on behalf of Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
II. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xvl The Company has not used the borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions for the specific purposes, for which It was taken at the Balance Sheet date.

xvii The Company does not have any transaction not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

xvlll The provisions of section 135 relating to Corporate Social Responsibilities are applicable to the company for the year ended 31 March 2025.



The ratio has increased significantly
due to lower investment

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

The ratio has increased significantly
due to reduction in inventories

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

The ratio has increased significantly
due to decrease In current Liabilities

Reasons for variation for more
than 25%

29%

-5%

4%

-11%

16%

22%

63%

-7%

0%

0%

77%

Variatiort%

336%

23,56%

17.16%

1.00

7.28

7,43

5,05

17,11%

o.oo

0.00

8.72

31-Mar-24

433%

22.29%

17.90%

0.89

8.42

9.08

8,25

15.91%

0.00

0.00

15.43

31-Mar-25

Return on Investment (%)

Return on Capital Employed (%)
(Earnings before interest and Taxes/
Capital Employed (total equity + total debt -

Net profit ratio (%)
(Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing and
discontinued operations / Revenue from

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times)
(Reveniie/Caoltal Fmnlnved)

Trade Payables turnover (in times)
"(Net Credit Purchases / Average trade payables)

Trade Receivables turnover (in times)
(Revenue from contract with customers / Average

Inventory turnover (in times)
(Cost of goods sold / Average inventories )

Return on Equity Ratio (%)

dividendl/Net Worth)

[Net Profit after taxest depreciation+interest+
sxceptional items + amortization) / (interest +

Debt equity ratio (in times)
[(Long term borrowing + short term borrowing) /
Net worth!

Current ratio (in times)
(Current assets / Current liabilities)

Ratios

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Sr. No.

Ratios
The following are analytical ratios for the half year ended March 3


